DRAFT

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF
THE ARLINGTON HEIGHTS HOUSING COMMISSION
HELD AT ARLINGTON HEIGHTS VILLAGE HALL
VILLAGE OF ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS

April 29, 2019
IN ATTENDANCE:
Commissioners
Present: Mark Hellner Zach Creer
William Delea Andrew Tripp
Commissioners
Absent: Alex Hageli Namrita Nelson
Staff Present: Charles Witherington-Perkins, Director of Planning & Community Development
Nora Boyer, Housing Planner/Staff Liaison
On Behalf of Bruce Adriani, Developer, Arlington 425
Arlington 425: Michael Firsel, Attorney for the Developer

l. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

II. ROLL CALL
Commissioners present: Hellner, Delea, Creer and Tripp.
Absent: Hageli and Nelson

A motion was made by Commissioner Creer, seconded by Commissioner Tripp to select
Commissioner Hellner to chair the meeting in the absence of Chairman Hageli. The motion was
approved unanimously.

M. Minutes

A motion was made by Commissioner Delea, seconded by Commissioner Creer to approve the
minutes of the January 22, 2019 meeting with two minor edits. The motion was approved
unanimously.

V. REPORTS
No report.



V. OLD BUSINESS
No report.
VI NEW BUSINESS
A. Arlington 425 Response to Affordable Housing Guidelines

Commissioner Hellner stated that although staff has been involved with discussing the development with
the developer, this is the first that the development has become before the Housing Commission. The
Housing Commission only addresses the affordable housing component of the project.

Ms. Boyer summarized the Staff Report to the Housing Commission that was posted on the Village website
concerning Arlington 425 project. Ms. Boyer stated that the Arlington 425 project is a development
proposed for the north three quarters of the block in downtown Arlington Heights bounded by Campbell,
Sigwalt, Highland and Chestnut Avenue. The project is proposed to include 3 buildings with a total of 361
units.

The Arlington Heights affordable housing guidelines call for developments of this size (over 26 units) to set
aside 15% of their units as affordable to households that are at or below 60% of area median income. The
guidelines applied to this development call for 54 affordable units.

Ms. Boyer said that staff has held several meetings with the developer. The developer’s first, formal
response to the affordable housing guidelines was received by the Village on December 21, 2018. The
developer’s proposal was to provide 15 affordable units.

Most recently, the developer proposed to provide 27 affordable units as units or fees in lieu of units. During
a meeting, the developer offered to provide the 27 affordable units as 20 actual affordable units affordable
to renters 80% of AMI at affordable rents, and fees in lieu of units for sseven units at $25,000 each for a
total of $175,000.

The staff alternative offered on April 12, 2019 included 27 affordable units as follows: 1) 18 actual
affordable units; 2) for households with incomes at or below 60% AMI at rents affordable to this incokme
level; 3) with the affordable units be studio and one-bedroom units; and 4) fee in lieu payments for 9 units
at $25,000 per unit. It was also discussed that if the affordable guidelines are revised in the future, the
lower of the requirements approved for the development or the revised guidelines would apply.

Staff has reviewed the affordable housing component of Arlington 425 based on the cost to the developer
to provide affordable housing units. Staff also considered:
1) The Village guidelines and Village directives which emphasize providing affordable units over the
payment of fees in lieu of units;
2) What the income eligibility income and rent standards should be. The guidelines call for 60% AMI
which is the standard used by the State under the Illinois Affordable Housing Planning and Appeal Act
that calls for 10% of units in municipalities to be affordable. Also, a 2013 housing study states that
there is more need in Arlington Heights for rental units affordable for households around 60% AMI than
at 80% AMI,



3) Unit mix according to the guidelines the unit mix should be proportional to the development overall.
In this case the developer has requested an exemption from providing two-bedroom units and asks to
provide only studio and one-bedroom units.

The staff recommendation for this meeting as it appears in the Staff Report was follows:

After analyzing the cost of providing affordable units, financial impacts on the Arlington 425 developer, and
the Village Boards goals and directives, it is recommended that the affordable housing component of
Arlington 425 meet the following conditions:

1. 18 actual affordable units be provided (5% of all units), affordable at 60% Area Median Income (AMI) that
are to be affordable in perpetuity.

2. A payment in lieu of 9 units (2.5% of all units) to be paid at $25,000 per unit ($225,000 total) at the time
of permit issuance for the first building to be constructed at Arlington 425.

3. The income eligibility standard for the affordable units is to be 60% of the Area Median Income (AMI) for
the Chicago-Joliet-Naperville area, adjusted for household size as updated annually by HUD.

4. The maximum rents are to be the rents determined to be affordable to households at 60% of Area
Median Income (AMI) for the applicable unit sizes (studio and one-bedroom units) according to the method
used by the Illinois Housing Development Authority (IHDA) for the Chicago Metro Area.

5. That 1/3 of the 18 affordable units to be studio units (6 studio units) and 2/3 of the affordable units to be
one-bedroom units (12 one-bedroom units), which is consistent with the proportions of these units in the
development.

6. Preference for tenancy of the affordable units will be given to current Arlington Heights residents and/or
veterans.

7. The developer shall submit an annual report concerning compliance with the affordable housing program
by January 31 of each year in a form as determined by the Village and in compliance with all other
elements of the guidelines.

8. If the Village’s affordable housing guidelines are revised prior to the issuance of the first building permit
for this project to standards that are lower than what the developer and Village agree upon, that the lower
of the two standards will be applied.

Mr. Perkins stated that Arlington Heights is one of five or six communities in lllinois, outside of Chicago, that
require affordable units in developments. The other communities being Highland Park, Lake Forest,
Evanston, St. Charles and Oak Park a month ago. Arlington is somewhat of a leader in this area. He stated
that, in fairness, the 15% of affordable housing units called for in the guidelines has not been achieved in
rental developments. Most recently, the approval for Arlington Downs required nine affordable units.



Exceptions have been Heart's Place where all of the units are subsidized and Parkview, which was
financed with Low-Income Housing Tax Credits. In both of these cases, the developer exceeded the 15% is
affordability level in the guidelines. The other rental developments in the Village paid the fees in lieu of
units. As acceptance of affordable housing has increased, the amount of the fee in lieu approved has
increased.

Commissioner Hellner stated that audience comments will be heard. He asked that comments address this
project specifically. He also stated the questions of the developer will be permitted. He asked that the
discourse be civil.

Before taking comments from the public, Mr. Michael Firsel, attorney for the developer said that certain
things have been discussed around the community and he hoped to answer some audience question in his
presentation.

Mr. Firsel said that since the developer went to the Village Board for early review, they have been told and
have been responsive to the Village’s desire to have actual affordable units in the development rather than
providing the full amount of affordable housing as payment of fees. rather than payment of fees. He said
that this is a $150 million project and that the per unit cost is not the $204,000 reported in the Staff Report
but is more than $300,000. He reported having done research that contradicts certain assertion in the Staff
Report and that there is a need for more units at 80% AMI in the zone identified by the Illinois Housing
Development Authority (IHDA) than for units affordable at 60% AMI.

He stated that the 18 actual units proposed by the developer exceeds any percentage or amount of
affordable housing provided by any other developer including at Arlington Downs. The payment in lieu
would be $225,000, which the Village would use to supplement or provide affordable.

He said it is impossible to provide 54 affordable units in this project and be able to finance it. Several
consultants, including SB Freedman have told the developer that even affordable housing providers cannot
afford to provide units at 60% AMI unless there are government subsidies or special financing provided to
support the affordable units. He said that no subsidies or special financing have been offered to the
developer. He said that he would respond to the staff recommendations specifically with other proposed
edits but wanted to point out that the developer is in agreement with respect to providing tenant
preferences in the following order: 1) to veterans; 2) to Arlington Heights residents; and 3) to veterans who
are not Arlington Heights residents, before offering units to other applicants.

The meeting was opened to comments by the public.

Heidi Graham identified herself as appearing officially as the President of the local League of Women
Voters and as a long-time resident of Arlington Heights. She commented that the League of Women Voters
holds the position nationally that affordable housing is a priority issue, and public and private affordable
housing is needed by many segments of communities. She said that the community is not viable unless
there is housing for all income levels. She recommended not going below the guidelines set by the Village.

Mr. Mussar asked for clarification from the developer if he is redefining affordable housing as affordable at
80% rather than 60% and also lowering the number of units being offered. The developer responded that
the proposal is 18 units at 80% affordable.



Geri Wasserman identified herself as a resident of Glenview and as a representative of Reclaim NW
Suburbs which has members from many of the northwest suburbs. Her points were that Arlington 425
should include a fair amount of affordable units at the 60% AMI level and that the $25,000 fee in lieu
amount is too low. She said other communities have set their fee in lieu at amounts at levels such as
$125,000 per unit. She also stated that Arlington Heights should adopt its guidelines by ordinance in order
that developers will know what is expected of them and in order to avoid the need to negotiate. She talked
about Evanston’s program, which is adopted by ordinance, and provides incentives and bonuses to
developers in order to incentivize units over the payment of fees.

Susan Catlin, resident of Arlington Heights, stated that she does not want all this affordable housing in
Arlington Heights. She said that when she moved here everyone was the same and we didn't have all this
crime with people who can't afford to live here. She lives a half a block away and is concerned for her
safety.

Cindy Churchill, who stated that she lives across the street from the proposed development and has not
agreed with some aspects of the project, but she stated that she agrees with what the developer is offering.
She said that she read on the Village website that the Arlington Height police are concerned about the
project.

Charles Perkins stated that he thought she was referring to an article in the Arlington Cardinal about
Parkview Apartments and in which some of the information about police calls was attributed to unspecified
sources. Parkview is on the north side of downtown and is a 45-unit apartment development that was
financed with Low-Income Housing Tax Credits. The Village requirement on that development was seven
affordable units, but they actually have closer to 40 or 41 affordable units at less than 60%. It is a different
program than what we are talking about here. It is apples and oranges and not a good comparison. He
pointed out that Dunton Tower has 20% affordable units since it was built 20 — 25 years ago. He said that
there are always police calls to apartment buildings, but it has been nothing out of the norm at the Dunton
Tower development.

Commissioner Hellner said that most of the calls at Parkview have been about parking issues. He said that
people should be cautious about reports from unattributed sources.

Laura (no last name provided) said that she has family and friends with the Arlington Heights Police
Department who made her aware of the Arlington 425 project. She said that she thinks it is valid to talk
about Parkview Apartments in this discussion. She didn’t want to name the offices but she heard from them
that a lot of the police calls to Parkview Apartments involved violent incidents. She described one violent
incident, which was also reported in the Daily Herald, regarding a man who she doesn't think was
supposed to be living there, but his grandmother let him move in. He beat his grandmother, tried to take an
officer's gun and bit an officer, and who was subsequently arrested. She spoke about another incident
when a woman would not let the police in when a child was choking. Commissioner Hellner asked if she
had personal knowledge of these incidents. Laura said that she heard these things from family and friends
who are cops. She then said that she spoke to the management at Parkview Apartments and learned that
15 units are Housing Authority and Cook County units, and that an investor purchased 25 units and allowed
them to be Low-Income Housing Tax Credit units, and crime has increased there. She wanted to know, if
the developer pays the fee in lieu units, if there anything the Village can to prevent someone from
purchasing units at Arlington 425 and making more units into low-income units.



Charles Perkins responded that there is nothing to stop a private sale of property. He said that a new owner
could lower rents if they could do so and still meet their debt service. However, it is unlikely that this would
happen. He said federal fair housing laws limit what the Village can do. Parkview Apartments, which is not
under discussion tonight, was developed using Low-Income Housing Tax Credits by a developer who
specializes in developing that kind of building with a higher percentage of affordable units. That is not what
we are talking about with Arlington 425, which is a high end, market rent development. It would be difficult
to bring down the rents to the affordable levels we are talking about even with Low-Income Housing Tax
Credits. Mr. Firsel confirmed this comment. With Parkview Apartments, it was known that the developer
was seeking Low-Income Housing Tax Credits, which might result in 19 affordable units. It was not known
that 41 unit would be affordable.

Peg Martin asked about the relevance of Parkview Apartments to the discussion tonight since it is an
entirely different kind of development.

Dawn Frenzell said she is in support of affordable housing and a diverse community. She said that people
like her parents, who are retired, who have difficulty affording the home they are in could, and senior who
may or may not drive, can use this type of affordable housing so that they can remain in the community that
they built over many years as residents. The location near amenities within walking distance is perfect for
permitting long-term residence to remain independent and in their community. She also said that she has a
young adult son with Asperger’s who would never be able to afford housing on his own in the community
could use an opportunity like this and would greatly benefit from affordable housing, especially at a location
like this. She said that we need to figure out how we are going to support people who are on the spectrum
and other members of our community to be able to live here. She had a question about the fees in lieu that
are collected and their uses and commented that it must be lot of money by now.

Nora Boyer stated that the amount currently in the Affordable Housing Trust Fund is about $200,000. More
in fees has been recently approved in connection with development projects, but since the fees are
collected a while after the projects are approved, the funds come later when permits are issued. It was
explained that fees are being built up, but the fees come in slowly. Ms. Frenzell suggested that many
people become in need of affordable housing through no fault of their own and the collected fees could be
used to help people experiencing hardships. Mr. Perkins said that the priority is to use funds to create units
not to use the funds for subsidies where the funds would get used up. There are other programs for that.
Commissioner Creer stated that the Housing Commission is the citizens advisory group on the Affordable
Housing Trust Fund.

Keith Moens who lives in Arlington Heights described the developer’s proposal of 20 affordable units as a
borderline insult compared to what should be done in this community. He said we need a whole lot more
than 20. He said that letters from the developer to the Village Manager indicated that the developer would
provide affordable units and rather than cash in lieu and comply with the affordable housing requirements.
He said that the developer should not be afraid of affordable units and that providing affordable units would
enable the developer to influence and take advantage of demand for higher rent and affordable rent
markets with the rents on the higher units going up since the supply would be reduced by the number of
affordable units. He said there is plenty of demand for 54 affordable units, certainly more than 20 affordable
units. He asked that the developer double or more the number of affordable units, at 60% AMI and look at
one and two-bedroom units which is what working families need.



Mr. Firsel responded that he needed to rebut some comments that were just made that were unfair. He said
that the developer initially offered only affordable units with no cash when it initially proposed 15 affordable
units. He said that the Village asked the developer to get to 27 units through units and cash-in-lieu and they
did that. He said that the developer kept their word. He said that the developer is not afraid of affordable
housing, rather the number of affordable units that can be included is an economic issue. He pointed out
that 15% has never been achieved in the Village, and the need for affordable housing cannot be solved by
this development. He further pointed out that none of the nearby suburbs have this type of requirement.

Kathleen (no last name given) stated that she is excited to see something flourish on this block. She thinks
that the developer’s proposal is reasonable. She said that the residents of the high rises support the
downtown businesses and this link needs to be considered. In response to her question, it was clarified that
the income eligibility standard applied to Dunton Tower is 80% of AMI, which was the standard used under
the government industrial revenue bond financing mechanism used at the time for Dunton Tower. Mr. Firsel
pointed out that Dunton Tower was also not required to build parking, and they rent their parking in the
Village garage; whereas, Arlington 425 is building parking.

Tom Melody stated that he moved to Arlington Heights once he could afford to. He said that providing
affordable housing for persons making $35,000/year provides a disincentive to make more and lose their
subsidy. He appreciates the preference for veterans. He supports the developer’s plan.

Janet Niemeyer said that she is a longtime resident of Arlington Heights. She is providing housing now for a
woman and her adult son who need affordable housing. She said that they are applying to programs, but it
is difficult. She said that affordable housing is an important issue. She said that being a City of Good
Neighbors is in our DNA, and she thinks it is beneficial to make opportunities for people to come to live and
contribute to Arlington Heights. She said that she favors the 60% AMI level.

Ray Crocker asked that the Village dig deep to provide as much affordable housing as we can in this and
other projects in Arlington Heights. He said that there need to be communities where the haves invite the
have-nots to come. He likes diversity and would like to see the developer increase the number of affordable
units. He said that the numbers seem awfully low to him, that they have done a pretty good job, but thinks
we could do better if the developer will take a little less profit.

Dave Weiner said that during the Parkview Apartment approval process, discussion of low-income housing
was turned to discussing affordable housing. He asked that Arlington 425 be held to having an affordable
component not a low-income component. He also stressed the importance of enough parking. He said that
he lives right behind the Parkview building and there are parking issues there.

Mark Bostrom with the Arlington Cardinal said that people in the audience had the right to be skeptical
about the development and that does not mean that they are against affordable housing. He questioned
Commissioner Hellner and Mr. Perkins about their comments regarding his Arlington Cardinal article and it
having unattributed sources. He also questioned Commissioner Hellner's source for his statement that
most of the police calls to Parkview Apartments have been parking related. Commissioner Hellner said that
he got his information by checking with the building manager.

Mr. Bostom said that since Mr. Perkins criticized the sources in his article, he was asking if Mr. Perkins
knows about calls to Parkview or has knowledge of any social service, law enforcement or other internal



memos discussing problems at Parkview Apartments. Mr. Perkins said that he was not being critical, he
just said that there were comments reported in the article that came from unspecified sources. He said that
he is aware that there is a higher number of calls at Parkview Apartments. He said that he thought he said
that. He also explained how the development was funded, that the income levels are lower at Parkview
Apartments, and there has been a higher volume of calls there. He said that Village’s social services
employees and the police are working with the residents and management through the Village’s
Community Policing program.

Mr. Bostrom stressed that residents concerns about Arlington 425 are understandable given events at
Parkview Apartment and that the Village should be open and responsive to those concerns. There was
than a discussion about whether or not there is a correlation between household income and crime.

Mr. Habib commented his main concerns were adequate parking and how sustainable the buildings will be.
It was explained that these topics are not under the purview of the Housing Commission, but the plans are
online and there have been two Plan Commission hearings that included discussion about parking. The
Housing Commission can only talk about the affordable housing.

A question was asked about whether there is a difference between the terms affordable housing and low-
income housing. Commissioner Hellner said there terms are not precisely defined. The Low-Income
Housing Tax Credit program, is a financing mechanism for affordable housing which is difficult to obtain. He
said that 60% of AMI is typically used to define affordable housing; and generally, housing is considered
affordable if monthly housing cost do not exceed 30% of monthly income. How Arlington Heights guidelines
have been applied has varied over time under different market conditions and seeking affordable units has
become more aggressive as the housing market has improved.

Laura asked how the Parkview Apartment project started. Mr. Perkins explained that the developer was
applying for Low-Income Housing Tax Credits and as part of the tax credits, they were required to have 19
affordable units. He said that he thinks tax credit income eligibility is lower than 60% AMI. Laura asked the
difference between tax credits and Cook County assistance. Commissioner Hellner explained the Cook
County program is a voucher program that subsidizes the rents of voucher holders. Laura said that she
grew up around public housing that was a problem and she just doesn’t want that to happen here,
especially for the sake of children. She wanted to know how Arlington 425 will be different from Parkview
Apartments so that problems happening at Parkview don’t happen with Arlington 425. Laura said she likes
the preferences that have been discussed and would favor other preferences such as senior citizens from
outside of Arlington Heights. She said that she just wants to make sure Arlington 425 is safe.

Commissioner Hellner said there is crime everywhere that has to be dealt with. He said that if any tenant
that lives there, or their guests, have a voucher and they commit a crime, they will lose the voucher under
the voucher program. He said that managers do not have incentives to have bad tenants. The Village also
deals with law enforcement. Mr. Perkins said that the staff proposal is that 5% of units at Arlington 425 be
affordable which is very different from what has happened at Parkview Apartments. The Village seeks to
distribute affordable units.

Mr. Habib (last name inaudible) asked if this $150 million project will bring jobs with it to govern the
development.



Mr. Firsel called on Debbie Smart, Arlington Heights resident and representative of Briarwood
Management. It was explained that Briarwood Management is the management company for Arlington 425.
Ms. Smart said that developer has gone through a great deal of due diligence and multiple public hearings
on this project. She said the uniqueness of this project is that property management was brought onto the
team from day one. She said they have been involved in the affordable housing, parking plan, etc. By
having the management company in the process they are able to develop a management methodology that
will work. They are making sure there are proper rules, a sense of ownership in developed, etc. to make it a
great place live. She said that Mr. Adreani has been developing properties for many years and has been
paying $40,000/year in property taxes on the site which he has left unfenced. He will pay $2 million in
property taxes after development is built, and $5 million/year in spending will be brought into the community
as a result of the development. There will be 100 new jobs related to the commercial space, office space,
and for the buildings. Ms. Smart said that she is a proponent of affordable housing but there needs to be a
balance between what can asked for in terms of affordable housing and what the developer can afford to
provide. She said that the developer is an honorable person and his heart is in the right place. She said
that, by coincidence, she lives in one of his buildings downtown and it is among the best buildings
downtown. She is comfortable that this is a great project for Arlington Heights.

Mr. Habib (last name inaudible) commented that he agrees that the number of units should come up some
and be at 60% AMI, and he expects there to be millennials just starting with first jobs to be interested in the
affordable units. He said crime is going to happen but how the community deals with it is what matters.

Chris Jones asked if there is still room to negotiate on the affordable housing component; whether the 60%
vs. 80% AMI and no two bedroom units is set. Commissioner Hellner responded that things are still up for
negotiation. The Housing Commission will make a recommendation to the Village Board. The Housing
Commission does not have to accept the staff recommendation. Ultimately, final decisions are up to the
Village Board. There have been two lengthy Plan Commission public hearings on the project, and
comments will be accepted at the Village Board meeting when this project is considered. There is usually a
three minute per person comment limit at the Village Board level.

Peg Martin asked if there are Village officials financial interest in the project. She said that Trustee Tinaglia
is the architect on the project. Mr. Firsel said that Mr. Tinaglia has been absent or has recused himself from
all meetings on this project. Public officials are required annually to disclose financial involvement with
Village business. The normal course of action is for officials to recuse themselves if they have a conflict of
interest.

Geri Wasserman repeated that the Village should make a serious effort to adopt its guidelines into an
ordinance so that developer know what is required of them. Commissioner Hellner said that each project is
different and applying the same standards to all projects is difficult.

Commissioner Hellner stated that the Village has been more ambitious with respect to affordable housing
since the housing market has improved. He commented on a recent study on the need for affordable
housing in Cook County.

Mr. Firsel said that according to the housing authority website, voucher payments are greater than the
maximum rents in the Village’s guidelines. Commissioner Hellner said that whether vouchers are available
is a different thing and CHA facilities have lengthy waiting lists.



Jim Elgas said that neighborhoods such has Virginia Terrace have been decimated by construction of new
homes at the same time that the Village says it wants to protect affordable housing. He said the ability of
people get a start in the community is going away. He said that it is a form of gentrification and the changes
are upsetting to residents. He said that there have been many teardowns on his block and people are
reluctant to improve their smaller homes because they think that resale is likely to be for a teardown.

Ted Eckhart asked when the public comment period will be ending because he is interested in listening to
what the Housing Commissioners’ are thinking. Commissioner Hellner asked if there were any more
comments from the audience. When no one indicated they wished to speak, the public comment portion of
the meeting ended.

Mr. Perkins provided a brief description of the differences between the developer’s proposal and the staff’'s
recommendations as well as the staff's reasoning. Mr. Perkins suggested adding people who work in
Arlington Heights to the categories of persons who receive preference in tenancy.

Commission Creer asked for clarification on the process depending on whether the Housing Commission
goes with the staff recommendation, the developer's proposal, its own recommendation, or if the Housing
Commission is not able to arrive at a recommendation tonight. He asked how that will affect whether the
project goes to the Village Board on May 6. Mr. Perkins said that would have to be evaluated.

Mr. Firsel stated that he wished to provide the developer's responses to the staff recommendation for the
record. He stated that they are asking that the income eligibility and rent levels be increased to the 80%
AMI standars. The developer asks for a 20-year affordability period for the affordable units from the date of
first occupancy instead of in perpetuity. The developer asks that the payment of fees in lieu of units take
place at staggered points of permit and occupancy approval processes rather than all at once at first permit
approval. He asked for flexibility in the number of studios and one-bedroom units by more or less 3 units
units (i.e. 3 — 9 studio units and 9 to 15 one-bedroom units but at all times a total of 18 affordable units) so
that the developer has some flexibility in responding to unit demand. He also stated that they want to
include all of the affordable units in the Campbell and Highland buildings, which will be the first buildings to
be built. He asked that the annual report to the Village be due in March or April each year rather than
January. He asked to go over the wording of the eighth recommendation.

Commissioner Tripp noted that the Village had requested more detailed financial information, but the
developer said in February that a pro-forma was not available. He asked if that had changed. He said that it
is difficult to make a decision based on the one spreadsheet that has been provided. Mr. Firsel stated that
the estimated value in the staff report of $204,000 to construct a units is not accurate for this project. Mr.
Perkins said that was not the intent of that number. The intent was to show the average value of this
development’s contribution based on housing in the Village is over $3 million.

Zach Creer asked why the SB Friedman analysis had not been provided to the Housing Commission. Mr.
Firsel clarified that SB Friedman did not provide an affordable housing analysis but they did provide a letter
that the developer will send to staff stating that there are not a lot of communities in the area that have
affordable housing policies. He said that the letter states that no developer, even developers that specialize
in affordable housing for entire buildings and which received incentives or special financing, can develop at
60% AMI. Commissioner Hellner suggested that the number of units at 60% would need to be provided in
order to evaluate whether that is accurate for a development. Housing Choice Vouchers is one way to

10



assist with the gap between the maximum rent to the tenant and what would be the market rent. Mr. Firsel
stated that Ms. Boyer said she would assist with identifying ways to possible address the gaps.

Commissioner Tripp asked about the origin of the preferences for tenant selection. The response was that
staff first brought up the preferences but that developer was in agreement, wanting this to be a project that
benefits Arlington Heights and its residents. Units would not be set aside and kept vacant if there were no
applicants who qualify for preference. The assumption is that there will be many applications from the
community.

Commissioner Creer stated that he is not seeing anything that would justify the developer’s statements
over the staff's recommendations. He said that he would even be willing to recommend more affordable
units if other Housing Commissioners accept that. If the developer can show evidence of the developer’s
analysis, he would be willing to look at that, but he is disappointed by what is before him from the
developer.

There was a discussion of the future property taxes on the development, which Mr. Firsel stated will be $2
million/year including the residential, commercial, office and parking components. Tenants will rent parking
spaces. Spaces are not included in the rents. Mr. Firsel stated that the property taxes on the units will be
$3,600 on average, and that property taxes on the affordable studio units will take up 36% of the annual
rent received on those units.

Mr. Firsel said that the developer can look again at the income and rent limits and other alternatives but can
not respond to alternatives tonight; and without having a discussion with the Village about possible
assistance such as breaks on permit fees.

Mr. Adreani said that 60% AMI standard does not work and the banks will laugh them out when they go in
for financing if that is presented. Mr. Firsel also said that the affordable housing affects the value of the
property due to the annual loss in revenue for the affordable units. He said that this project is spearheading
what the Village’s requirements for affordable housing will be going forward and it has been challenging
because up to this point what the Village has required has been all over the board. He said that it is
important for the Village to have a program that is something it can be proud of, but the program needs to
be realistic so that developments will not be made unfeasible.

Commissioner Delea asked about if more financial information is available since lender responses must be
based on more information than the Housing Commission has. Mr. Firsel talked about the annual loss in
rent at various numbers of units. Mr. Perkins pointed out the analysis in the Staff Report that shows annual
gross rent income at approximately $8 million and the rent losses at different levels equates to
approximately 2% of the development’s units. Mr. Firsel said the affordable housing also has an impact on
the value of the property, which is based 100% on the project’s income and talked about the capitalization
required. Mr. Firsel talked about losses at 54 affordable units, but Mr. Delea said that information should
not be presented based on 54 affordable units since that number of affordable units appears to be off the
table. More information is needed at 18 or 20 units and 60% and 80% AMI. Mr. Firsel said other
communities use other standards and there are other factors such as a Deerfield development that was
approved at 120% AMI and Chicago developments where incentives, such as TIF funds, are included.

11



Commissioner Delea asked if Arlington Height has discussed moving its income eligibility standard to 80%
AMI. Ms. Boyer responded that this has not been discussed. Commissioner Delea asked if the developer
would consider a mix of 60% AMI and 80% AMI units. Mr. Perkins said that although Arlington Downs is
providing 9 affordable units at 60% AMI, and more affordable units are being requested for Arlington 425,
Arlington Downs did not get a break on the bedroom mix (the project includes two bedroom units) and
Arlington Downs has parking construction costs. What is being asked of Arlington 425 is not that much
more.

Mr. Firsel said that there may be some movement from 80% AMI to 75% AMI for, and they want to try to

accommodate all parties. He suggested that it may turn out that a resolution that does not make anyone

completely happy may be the best outcome. He said 27 actual affordable units is not something they can
do.

Mr. Firsel asked that the Housing Commission deliberate and said that the will try to come to agreements
where possible or may need to discuss and tweek requirements at the Village Board level too. There is a
need, with financial implications, to move forward with the project.

In response to the developer’s earlier comments, Mr. Perkins recommends that the affordable units to be
affordable in perpetuity. Allocating the affordable units to the Campbell and Highland (and not Chestnut)
buildings is fine. Staff does not have an issue with phasing in the payments of fees in lieu of units to points
during the permit approval and first occupancy processes

Mr. Perkins said that staff understands that 15% affordable units is hard to get without affordable housing
financing or programs. That is why the recommended percentage of affordable units was brought down to
5% for this privatel- funded development. The 60% AMI standard is important for continued compliance
with the 10% State affordable housing requirement. The recommended fee for 2.5% of the units brings the
total contribution to 7.5% of all units. With respect to the staff point of view, it is also important that the units
are affordable in perpetuity.

Commissioner Creer said that he would be willing to support the staff recommendation at this point and
maybe go with a higher number of required units. He may have been more receptive to the developer’s
proposal had the developer provided more information justifying their proposal.

Mr. Firsel said that they would not be able to agree to additional affordable units tonight and without a
discussion with the Village about assistance the Village could provide to reduce the developer’s costs, cut
as looking at waiving permit fees on the affordable units.

Commissioner Trip responded that the developers are saying that they need to do a holistic evaluation, and
there are a lot of stakeholders who want this development to be a success. However, he said that the
Housing Commission is being asked to make a decision with large implications based on not quite enough
information. He said the Housing Commission needs more information just as the developer needs more
information.

Commissioner Hellner said that throughout the process he has noted that everyone agrees that the Village

would love to see this project. Mr. Firsel said that the project has a lot of moving parts that have been
debated, but agrees that the project has been well received overall.

12



Commissioner Creer stated that the Housing Commission has a difficult role because considerations such
as density, less parking, etc. are discussed prior to the project getting to the Housing Commission. The
Housing Commission asks without having anything to offer. The only thing the Housing Commission has to
work with is how much profit the developer should get. Mr. Firsel agreed that costly modifications have
been requested throughout the process to this point and the affordable housing gets what is left over. He
suggested that the process should include all components of the project all the way along, including the
affordable housing, rather than leaving the affordable housing for the end.

Commissioner Delea said that he would like to see some units at 60% AMI. Commissioner Tripp agreed
that he wants some units at 60% AMI but needs more information before making a recommendation.

Commissioner Creer said that he is inclined to go with the staff recommendation relying ton staff's
expertise.

Mr. Creer made a motion to accept the staff’s recommendation for the affordable housing
component of Arlington 425. The motion failed for a lack of second.

Commissioner Hellner said that the Housing Commission would like to get this resolved quickly for the
developer and offered to put his suggestion of 18 units at 60% AMI and 9 units at 80% AMI in the form of a
motion is the other Housing Commissioners were receptive to that. Mr. Firsel had said that the developer
would not accept this alternative. There was no response from the Housing Commissioners and the motion
was not made.

The possibility of meeting again before May 6t was discussed. Mr. Perkins said a turn around that quickly
would be difficult, especially with regard to notifying the public, am available meeting room would have to
be located, etc. Commissioner Creer asked when the developer could provide more financial information. It
was clarified that the financial information requested is a detailed cash flow statement including anticipated
revenues and expenses at the various affordable housing scenarios and showing the net operating income
that is feeding the values.

Mr. Firsel said that he could provide the financial information to staff the next day and offered to meet with
two Housing Commissioners at time (to comply with the Open Meetings Act), to go over financials. He said
that some of the financial information is confidential and no developer that is not seeking public funds would
disclose it. Mr. Perkins said staff would need to talk to the Village Attorney about such an approach.

Commissioner Creer stated he was not comfortable with the suggestion because he does not see it as the
role of a citizen’s advisory group to delve that deeply into the financials. He stated that he would be
comfortable with staff doing that evaluation and amending the staff recommendations accordingly if they
see fit.

Mr. Firsel asked if the needed additional analysis and discussion can be done over the next week in order
to take the project to the Village Board on Monday, May 6. Mr. Perkins said the Village will need to look at
options for proceeding and when a next meetings can be scheduled.

Commissioner Hellner thanked everyone for attending and participating in the discussion.

13



VII. OTHER BUSINESS

VIIl. ~ ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Commissioner Hellner, seconded by Commissioner Creer, to adjourn the
meeting. The meeting adjourned at 10:10 pm.

NEXT MEETING: TO BE DETERMINED

14



